
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Licensing Regulatory Committee 

on Monday, 14 January 2019, at 2.15 p.m., or on the rising of 
the Licensing Committee, whichever is the later, 

in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, 
Kendal 

 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

James Airey 

Rupert Audland 

Pat Bell 

Alvin Finch 

Tom Harvey 

Hazel Hodgson 

John Holmes 

Kevin Holmes 

Helen Irving 

Andrew Jarvis 

Dave Khan 

Helen Ladhams (Chairman) 

Jon Owen 

Doug Rathbone 

David Webster 

 

 
 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
Thursday, 3 January 2019 
 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Committee Services 

 

Telephone: 01539 733333 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 8 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 5 November 2018 (copy attached). 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations 
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no 
later than 0:01am (one minute past midnight) two working days before the 
meeting.  Information on how to make the application can be obtained by 
viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the 
Committee Services Team on 01539 733333. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 
 
 To receive any questions or representations which have been received 

from members of the public. 
 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 
 
 To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 

members of the public. 

 

6  2019/20 TO 2023/24 DRAFT BUDGET  9 - 14 

 To note the draft budget estimates for the financial years 2019/20 to 2023/24 
prior to their submission to Council as part of the final budget report.  

 

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


 

PART II   

 Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph 
number) 

There are no items in this Part of the Agenda. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



5 
05.11.2018 Licensing Regulatory Committee 
 

 

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Committee held in 
the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, on Monday, 5 November 2018, 
at 2.00 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Helen Ladhams (Chairman) 
Andrew Jarvis (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Rupert Audland 

Pat Bell 
Alvin Finch 
Tom Harvey 

 

Hazel Hodgson 
John Holmes 
Kevin Holmes 

Dave Khan 
 

Doug Rathbone 
David Webster 

 

Officers 
 

Una Bell Assistant Committee Services Officer 

Sean Hall Principal Environmental Protection Officer 

Anthea Lowe Solicitor to the Council 

Joe Marriott Environmental Protection Officer 

 

LR/14 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the 
minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 20 August 2018. 
 

LR/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interested were raised. 
 

LR/16 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the Agenda. 
 

LR/17 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no questions, representations, deputations or 
petitions have been received in respect of this meeting. 
 

LR/18 REVIEW OF LICENSING FEES AND CHARGES 2019/2020 AND DRAFT BUDGET  
 
The Principal Environmental Protection Officer presented a report which outlined the 
review of the Licensing Fees and Charges 2019/20 and the draft budget for the service 
area. 
 

Page 5

Item No.2



6 
05.11.2018 Licensing Regulatory Committee 
 

 

RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the recommended fees for the financial year 2019/20, as set out in Appendix 1 
to the report, and subject to approval by Council as part of the final budget-setting 
process, be endorsed; and 
 
(2) the following be noted:- 
 

(a) the nationally-set fees for 2019/20 as set out in Appendix 2 to the report; 
and 

 
(b) the latest draft budget estimates including the fees and charges for 
2019/20 as set out in Appendix 1 to the report, prior to submission to Council for 
approval as part of the final budget report. 

 

LR/19 CHANGES TO SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL HACKNEY CARRIAGE 
AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING POLICY  
 
The Principal Environmental Protection Officer presented a report which outlined the 
changes to South Lakeland District Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Licensing Policy. He informed Members that the Policy had been adopted by South 
Lakeland District Council (SLDC) in December 2015. However, since that date there 
had been significant changes in the way agencies and organisations delivered the 
Driver and Vehicle Standards Agency (DVSA) taxi driver standards test and, following 
a number of high profile cases in the North West, there was now an emphasis on the 
safeguarding of vulnerable individuals. He explained that, as a result of the DVSA’s 
decision to no longer deliver the taxi driver standards test, SLDC had been working 
with an external agency to develop an approved test which would be delivered to all 
new applicants. It was proposed that drivers would be required to undertake mandatory 
safeguarding training, by attending an in-house training course or via the knowledge 
test. In addition, on 3 September 2018, SLDC had received a letter from Cumbria 
County Council which advised that there had been changes to parking and taxi ranks in 
Kendal. The letter from Cumbria County Council had been included at Appendix 2 to 
the report, and SLDC’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy had been 
amended to reflect the changes. 
 
The Principal Environmental Protection Officer brought Members’ attention to the 
sections of the Policy which had been amended to reflect the changes and he also 
proposed a number of further amendments to the Policy which included:- 
 

1) Page 29 - ‘Drivers should’ – to be replaced with ‘Drivers shall’; 
 

2) Page 32 - Appendix F: Testing of Applicants – (2.0) Local Geography - the 
following sentence to be added ‘The Local Authority will also include some 
questions on safeguarding’; and 

 
3) Page 33 - (8.0) General – the following sentence to be added ‘If any 

safeguarding questions are failed, irrespective of overall pass rate, the test 
result will be a fail’. 

 
The Principal Environmental Protection Officer answered questions from Members and 
provided further clarity regarding the report and the proposed revisions to the Policy. In 
response to a query on how the Council would control those who come into the area to 

Page 6



7 
05.11.2018 Licensing Regulatory Committee 
 

 

operate, the Principal Environmental Protection Officer undertook to provide a written 
response. 
 
RESOLVED - That  
 
(1) the report be noted; and  
 
(2) subject to the amendments raised at the meeting and outlined above, the 
revised Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy, at Appendix 1 to the 
report, be adopted. 
 

LR/20 INTRODUCTION OF THE ANIMAL WELFARE (LICENSING OF ACTIVITIES 
INVOLVING ANIMALS) (ENGLAND) REGULATIONS 2018  
 
The Environmental Protection Officer presented the report which introduced the Animal 
Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018, and its 
associated fees. He advised Members that the Regulations had come into force on 1 
October 2018 and had changed the way animal boarding establishments, dog breeding 
establishments, pet shops and riding establishments were licensed. The Regulations 
had also introduced responsibilities which related to the licensing of keeping animals 
for exhibition. The Environment Protection Officer highlighted the types and number of 
licences currently issued by South Lakeland District Council. He outlined the changes 
to the licensing and inspection process and advised Members that during the 
transitional period for the new legislation, existing licences would continue to their 
stated expiry date and then be renewed under the new Regulations.  
 
The Environmental Protection Officer and the Solicitor to the Council responded to 
questions from Members. 
 
RESOLVED – That  
 
(1) the report be noted; and  
 
(2) the fees payable in connection with animal licensing applications for the period 
1  October 2018 onwards, as detailed in Appendix 2 to the report, be agreed and 
included as part of the normal budget setting process. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 2.47 p.m. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



South Lakeland District Council 

Licensing Committee 

Licensing Regulatory Committee 

Monday, 14 January 2019 

2019/20 to 2023/24 Draft Budget 

 

Portfolio:   Andrew Jarvis - Finance Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Shelagh McGregor - Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 
Officer) 

Report Author: Helen Smith – Financial Services Manager 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: Budget and Policy Framework Decision included in the Forward Plan 
as published on 2 October 2018 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 It is expected that the budgets for licensing services will be approved by full Council 
on 26 February 2019, as part of the overall 2019/20 to 2023/24 Budget.  This report 
gives Licensing Committee the opportunity to consider the funding available to 
deliver their services. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Licensing Committee note the latest draft 
estimates. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Licensing Committee and Licensing Regulatory Committee reviewed licensing fees 
and charges and indicative budgets for 2019/20 onwards based on the Medium Term 
Financial Plan on 5 November 2018.  Fees were agreed to meet statutory 
requirements.    

 
3.2 The latest draft revenue budgets for 2019/20 to 2023/24 are attached at Appendix 1.  

These will form part of the overall Draft Revenue Budget due to be presented to 
Council for consideration and approval on the 26 February 2019. 

 
3.3 The Draft Budget Report considered by Council on the 18 December 2018 showed a 

balanced position corporately for 2019/20. The detailed budget relating to Licensing 
Committee, presented in Appendix 1, represents no change in the level of service 
provision from 2018/19. The estimates have changed year on year, the main reasons 
being: 

 Incremental progression on salary costs and the pay award; 

 Unavoidable inflation on costs (e.g. premises costs); 

 Review of base expenditure for cost reductions; 

 Income from fees and charges in line with the fees agreed on 5 November 2018. 

Page 9

Item No.6



3.4 A significant proportion of the licences issued by the Council are based on cost 

recovery. Historically, some licence fees were not covering the full costs and those 
costs have not been fully recovered for a number of years. Currently there is a 
programme of ongoing review of internal recharges, review of other costs such as 
raw material (licence plates) as well as reviewing wider issues such as reviewing the 
service as part of the Customer Connect programme with a view to making the 
services digital by default. Such a review will incorporate the reviewing of process, a 
new digital platform and staff required to deliver the service. These measures have 
been deemed the most viable to steadily address the balance between service and 
expenditure.  Fees have been calculated with due regards to the requirements of the 
Provision of Services Regulations 2009 for them to be reasonable and proportionate 
and not to exceed the cost of service delivery. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The Draft Budget has been considered by Cabinet on 28 November 2018 and 
Council on 18 December 2018.  It will also be considered by Lake Administration and 
Planning Committees will receive and consider the elements of the draft Budget 
Report which are relevant to them. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be 
asked to consider the 18 December Council first draft Budget Report at its January 
2019 meeting. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 This overall Draft Budget presents options in relation to potential budget pressures 
and savings, new capital programme bids, one off revenue growth bids and fees and 
charges. The proposals together aim to meet the Council’s statutory duty to set a 
balanced Budget for 2019/20.  No alternative options are proposed in this report. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 This report sets out the draft Budget to enable the consideration of how the Council’s 
priorities will be delivered.  Setting a sound framework for budget preparation assists 
in the delivery of all corporate outcomes.  This strategy has been developed within 
the context of the MTFP. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 The draft Budget aims to safeguard the Council’s financial position and ensure a 
balanced budget for 2019/20 and an improved position in the years that follow. 

7.2 Licensing Committee and Licensing Regulatory Committee considered fees and 
charges and initial draft budget proposals at their meeting of 5 November 2018.  The 
proposed fees reflected service demand, the need for public protection and statutory 
requirements. 

Human Resources 

7.3 This report has no direct impact on the staffing of the Council; individual savings and 
growth proposals may have direct staffing implications. 

Legal 

7.4 This report has no direct legal implications at this stage but individual proposals 
resulting from this report may have direct legal implications. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.5 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No  

Page 10



7.6 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This 
report contains proposals to set a balanced budget for 2019/20 which will be subject 
to further consultation. Specific issues that require HSEEIAs will be addressed within 
the final budget proposals presented to Council 26 February 2019. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No   

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This 
report contains proposals to set a balanced budget for 2019/20 which will be subject 
to further consultation. Specific issues that require EIAs will be addressed within the 
final budget proposals presented to Council 26 February 2019. 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Failure to create a balanced and 
sustainable budget by February 
2018 

Includes: inability to deliver 
corporate priorities, 
inappropriate spending, 
and inappropriate 
reductions in services. 

Identification of sound 
budget guidelines in an 
agreed strategy reduces 
the risk of an unaffordable 
budget and/or precipitate 
budget reductions. 

Monitoring of progress 
against the budget 
timetable reduces the 
need for last-minute 
budget adjustments. 

Revenue budget and Capital 
Programme may not be 
integrated and aligned with 
Council Plan. 

Resources not directed to 
achieving corporate 
outcomes, leading to 
inappropriate spending. 

Both the revenue budget 
and the Capital 
Programme are now 
embedded in the 
corporate planning cycle.  
All revenue budgets and 
capital programme 
schemes are linked to 
Council plan priorities 

Failure to set appropriate fees 
and charges for licenses 

Reduced income for work 
undertaken and insufficient 
income to cover the cost of 
operating the licensing 
service. 

Potential legal challenge, 
increased costs and 
reputational damage. 

 

Bring current fees in line 
with MTFP while ensuring 
they meet statutory 
requirements.  Further 
controls planned to 
streamline administration 
burdens and review 
services to provide 
budgetary savings in 
licensing. 

Contact Officers 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539 793147 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Draft Budgets 2019/20 – 2023/24 

Page 11

mailto:h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk


Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Medium Term Financial Plan 
approved Council 24 July 2018 

https://tinyurl.com/ya988w5b 

 

 

Review of Licensing Fees and 
Charges 2019/20 and Draft 
Budget, Licensing Committee and 
Licensing Regulatory Committee 
5 November 2018 

https://tinyurl.com/y9jgmyuw 

 

2019/20 to 2023/24 Draft Budget, 
Council 18 December 2018 

https://tinyurl.com/y9uhd7j2 

 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 2/1/2019 

Section 151 Officer 2/1/2019 

Monitoring Officer 2/1/2019 

SMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 2/1/2019 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) 28/11/2018 

Council 18/12/2018 

 

Page 12

https://tinyurl.com/ya988w5b
https://tinyurl.com/y9jgmyuw
https://tinyurl.com/y9uhd7j2


2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Employees 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

8.0 8.0 Supplies and Services 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0

98.5 98.5 Central Support Services 107.2 107.2 107.2 107.2 107.2

106.5 106.5 115.2 115.2 115.2 115.2 115.2

Income

-103.0 -103.0 Customer Receipts -104.7 -106.5 -108.4 -108.4 -108.4

-103.0 -103.0 -104.7 -106.5 -108.4 -108.4 -108.4

3.5 3.5 Net Expenditure 10.5 8.7 6.8 6.8 6.8

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Employees 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

3.2 3.2 Supplies and Services 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2

41.8 41.8 Central Support Services 46.3 46.3 46.3 46.3 46.3

45.0 45.0 49.5 49.5 49.5 49.5 49.5

Income

-18.3 -18.3 Customer Receipts -18.6 -18.9 -19.2 -19.2 -19.2

-18.3 -18.3 -18.6 -18.9 -19.2 -19.2 -19.2

26.7 26.7 Net Expenditure 30.9 30.6 30.3 30.3 30.3

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Employees 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.2 Supplies and Services 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

116.6 116.6 Central Support Services 121.9 121.9 121.9 121.9 121.9

116.8 116.8 122.1 122.1 122.1 122.1 122.1

Income

-194.1 -194.1 Customer Receipts -197.9 -202.1 -206.5 -206.5 -206.5

-194.1 -194.1 -197.9 -202.1 -206.5 -206.5 -206.5

-77.3 -77.3 Net Expenditure -75.8 -80.0 -84.4 -84.4 -84.4

Licensing Act

Licensing and enforcement of legislation and Council conditions relaing to Liquor Licences.

Hackney Carriage Licences

Licensing and enforcement of legislation and Council conditions relating to hackney carriages, private hire vehicles, drivers 

and operators.

Miscellaneous Licences

Licensing and enforcement of legislation and Council conditions relating to Animal Boarding, Zoos, Riding Establishment, 

Street Trading, etc

Appendix 1

The purpose of this section is to set out the detailed service budgets

Page 13



Direct Expenditure

0.6 0.6 Employees 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

0.0 0.0 Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Supplies and Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

23.2 23.2 Central Support Services 25.3 25.3 25.3 25.3 25.3

23.8 23.8 25.9 25.9 25.9 25.9 25.9

Income

-20.8 -20.8 Customer Receipts -21.2 -21.7 -22.1 -22.1 -22.1

-20.8 -20.8 -21.2 -21.7 -22.1 -22.1 -22.1

3.0 3.0 Net Expenditure 4.7 4.2 3.8 3.8 3.8

Gambling Licensing

Licensing and enforcement of legislation and Council conditions relating to gambling.

Page 14


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 2019/20 to 2023/24 Draft Budget
	201920 to 202324 Draft Budget - Appendix 1


